Faculty Senate Meeting Thursday, December 3, 2015 Library Rooms 209 A&B

Dr. Porter called the meeting to order at 3:30 and thanked the Library for providing snacks.

The following members were present:

- Dr. Bill Abrams Dr. Jennifer Apperson Dr. Ayse Balas Dr. Chris Bjornsen Dr. Rhonda Brock-Servais Dr. Mary Carver Dr. Cynthia Crews Dr. Kevin Doyle Dr. Adam Franssen
- Mr. Jeff Halliday Dr. David Hardin Dr. Steven Isaac Mrs. Claire LaRoche Dr. Brett Martz Mrs. Amanda McLellan Dr. Sara Miller Dr. Joan Neff Dr. Kelly Nelson

Dr. Sarah Porter Dr. Christopher Register Dr. Carl Riden Dr. Sean Ruday Dr. Leah Shilling-Traina Dr. Chris Swanson Dr. Larissa Tracy Dr. Bennie Waller

Also present were Ms. Kathy Charleston, Dr. Sharon Emerson-Stonnell, Mr. Quincy Goodine, Dr. Kellyn Hall, Dr. Virginia Kinman, Ms. Vikki Levine, Dr. Jo Morrison, Dr. Jonathan Page, Dr. Lissa Power deFur, Dr. Shawn Smith, Dr. Pam Tracy.

Members **not** present were Mr. Mark Barham, Dr. Paul Barrett, Dr. Phillip Cantrell, Dr. Paul Chapman, Mr. Ken Copeland, Dr. Alix Fink, Dr. Susan Lynch, Dr. David Magill, Dr. Kristen Nugent, Dr. Suzy Palmer, Dr. Jeannine Perry, Dr. Tim Pierson, Dr. Meg Thompson, Dr. Charles White

The minutes from the November 5, 2015, meeting were approved as posted.

Dr. Sarah Porter introduced Ms. Leta Bressin who will serve as Graduate Student Advisory Council Representative to Faculty Senate. Dr. Porter announced that Mr. Mark Barham will serve as the Student Government Association Representative to Faculty Senate and introduced Ms. Jessica Darst, SGA Member, who attended the meeting on behalf of Mr. Barham.

For EPC Dr. Shawn Smith moved to amend the report by making the Biology and Environmental Science program changes and Social Work and Communication Disorders program change Information Items rather than Action Items. The motion **passed**. Dr. Smith moved approval of the credit hour change from 5 to 4 for BIOL 304. The motion **passed**. Dr. Smith moved approval of the credit hour change from 3 to 4 for BIOL 399. The motion **passed**.

Dr. Sarah Porter invited Mr. Quincy Goodine, President of the Black Student Association to speak about Campus Diversity. Mr. Goodine informed Senate of the collaborative work that the Black Student Association, Student Government Association, Office of Diversity and Inclusion has begun to develop a diversity statement and diversity code for Longwood. He asked that Senate be involved in developing these codes and wants to work with Senate to establish policies and procedures to create more inclusive classroom environments. Mr. Goodine will ensure that Dr. Porter is included on meeting schedules and all Senators as well as interested faculty will be welcome to attend.

Dr. Sarah Porter called on Dr. Sharon Emerson-Stonnell to report for the Academic Core Curriculum Committee. Dr. Emerson-Stonnell expressed appreciation for attendance and participation in previous meetings which resulted in about 25 pages of worthwhile feedback. Based on that feedback, the committee has scheduled more workshops in January so that faculty will have additional time to discuss the proposed model. Workshop schedule: Jan. 12 from 1:00 to 4:00 with lunch provided. Jan. 13 from 9:00 to noon with breakfast provided and 1:00 to 4:00 with lunch provided. Dr. Emerson-Stonnell strongly encourages participation.

Dr. Sarah Porter welcomed Ms. Amber Clark with comments from the Bookstore. Ms. Clark reported that the Bookstore has seen an increase in students using Barnes and Noble at Longwood over other vendors and their rental program has

improved. She also noted that the bookstore is looking to adopt "First Day Solutions" that will load interactive materials directly into a student's Canvas space. This may have a positive impact on retention. Ms. Clark also reported that the Bookstore is missing textbook orders for about 400 course sections for spring 2016. She encouraged more use of the FacultyEnlight on-line system and will come to academic department meetings to demonstrate the benefits of using FacultyEnlight.

Dr. Sarah Porter moved approval of the resubmitted proposal to change **Section C. Grading** in the FPPM. Dr. Abrams made a motion to strike the term "myLongwood" from Section C. on the basis that information systems change and Longwood's may not always be known as "myLongwood". The motion did not pass. Dr. Brock-Servais made a motion to replace the second paragraph under the heading **C. GRADING** that begins "If notice is given in the syllabus......" with exact wording from the 2015-2016 University Catalog, page 34. The content is the same, but everyone agreed that the structure of the catalog copy is easier to understand. The motion, as amended, **passed**.

Announcements: Art majors currently having an art sale. Science majors currently presenting posters in Lankford.

There being no further business, Dr. Porter adjourned the meeting at 4:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted

Sharon Perutelli

Longwood University Faculty Senate PROPOSAL/POLICY COVER SHEET

This cover sheet is intended to provide information to members of the Faculty Senate about a new proposal/policy or about revisions to an existing proposal/policy. If you are proposing a new policy, then attach the text of the policy to this form. If you are proposing a change to an existing policy, then attach the text of the current policy with any deleted language marked by a strikethrough and with new language marked by an underline. If you are deleting a policy, then attach the text of the policy to be deleted.

COMMITTEE(S) that authored or sponsored this proposal: Faculty Senate Executive Committee

TOPIC: Section C Grading FPPM

BACKGROUND (Provide a brief statement describing the origins of this proposal, the nature of the problem it addresses, and the work completed to devise the proposal): Aligning the language with the academic catalog and practice.

<u>SUMMARY</u> OF NEW POLICY OR PROPOSED CHANGES OR DELETIONS TO AN **EXISTING POLICY** (Provide a brief list or statement describing the content of the policy or the proposed changes or deletions): See attached, track changes was utilized.

<u>RATIONALE</u> FOR THE POLICY OR PROPOSED CHANGES (Provide a brief statement as to why the new policy, the changes, or the deletion is needed): Aligning the language with the academic catalog and practice.

Date submitted to Senate Executive Committee for Consideration: __October 29, 2015____ Action(s) Taken: <u>Refer to Faculty Senate Meeting on November 5, 2015</u>

Date first read at Faculty Senate:___Nov. 5, 2015_____

Action(s) Taken: Motion passed to send back to Senate Executive Committee for further review.

Date final action taken by Faculty Senate: _Dec. 3, 2015_____

Final action(s) Taken: <u>Approved as Amended. Page 1, second paragraph amended.</u>

C. GRADING

The evaluation of student work and the assignment of grades are the responsibility and prerogative of the individual instructor. The instructor must publish in the course syllabus the procedures used in determining grades, including the proportionate weighting of examinations and other course requirements. The instructor must maintain a systematic record of grades. This record must be available to the department chair in case of sickness or other inability to complete a course or if employment with the University is not continued.

If notice is given in the syllabus, faculty may lower a course grade no more than a letter grade if unexcused absences total 10 percent or more of scheduled classes. If prior notice is provided in the course syllabus, instructors may also assign a grade of "0" or "F" (a) for assignments missed because of unexcused absences, or (b) for the *entire course* if a student missed a total (excused and unexcused) of 25% of scheduled classes.

It is the responsibility of each instructor to give students a copy of his or her attendance policy in the course syllabus.

Instructors may assign a grade of "0" or "F" on work missed because of unexcused absences.

Instructors have the right to lower a student's course grade, but no more than one letter grade, if the student misses 10 percent of the scheduled class meeting times for unexcused absences.

Instructors have the right to assign a course grade of "F" when the student has missed a total (excused and unexcused) of 25 percent of the scheduled class meeting times.

Students must assume full responsibility for any loss incurred because of absence, whether excused or unexcused.

Instructors should permit students to make up work when the absence is excused. Excused absences are those resulting from the student's participation in a college-sponsored activity, from recognizable emergencies, or from serious illness. Faculty may require documentation for excused absences in their attendance policy. Student Health Services will provide documentation of needed absence in very limited cases: only for those students who are sent home by Student Health (ex. Communicable disease). The Dean of Students may also provide documentation for students unable to attend class due to mental health reasons.

Once a grade has been submitted to the registrar, it may be changed by the instructor **only if an error in computation or recording is discovered, or to remove a grade of incomplete.** Grades may be changed by designated individuals other than the instructor only in cases of successful grade appeal or medical withdrawal. Grade changes must be submitted in writing, signed, dated, and hand-delivered to the registration office by the instructor or a designated University official.

Undergraduate Grading Policy

- Beginning with the Fall 2011 semester, plus and minus signs on grades will affect the grade point average calculation. The following point values will be used: A = 4.0, A- = 3.7, B+ = 3.3, B = 3.0, B- = 2.7, C+ = 2.3, C = 2.0, C- = 1.7, D+ = 1.3, D = 1.0, D- = 0.7, F = 0. For courses taken before the Fall 2011 semester, plus and minus signs on grades will not be used in computing the GPA
 - a. The grade of "A" indicates excellence in learning and scholarship. Such scholarship should involve not only the recall of information, but also the ability to communicate the information effectively and to understand its importance and application.
 - b. The grade of "B" indicates substantial mastery of the objectives of the course.
 - c. The grade of "C" indicates average work.
 - d. The grade of "D" indicates substandard work of sufficient quality and quantity to be counted toward graduation if balanced by above-average work in other courses.
 - e. The grade of "F" indicates failure to meet the objectives of the course.
 - f. The grade of "I" indicates that because of illness or for other good reason the work of the semester has not been completed. An "I" becomes an "F" unless the work is completed and the instructor assigns a course grade by the published date in the middle of the subsequent regular semester. The due date is published in the University calendar.
 - g. The grade of "P" indicates that the student has received credit for the course on a pass/fail option. This option is generally limited to elective courses and certain courses offered only on a pass/fail basis. No student may elect more than three courses on a pass/fail basis. Students must notify the Office of the Registrar before the end of the second week of classes if they wish to take an elective course for pass/fail credit. Faculty will not be notified and will turn in regular letter grades. The Registrar will convert "A" "B" and "C" grades to "P." The Registrar will convert "D" and "F" grades to "F." Faculty will only have the grade of P or F in mylongwood when entering midterm grade estimates and final grades.

For graduate students, the grades of "P" (pass) and "NP" (not pass) are also used in all thesis research, collaborative special education research, teacher research, lecture/recital, and comprehensive examination courses and are not used in calculating the grade point average.

- h. The grade of "W" indicates withdrawal without academic penalty. It is automatically assigned for withdrawal from the end of the drop period (first five six class days) through the 35th day of regularly scheduled classes and for other documented withdrawals. Like all grades, "W" grades are recorded on the student's transcript. Upon withdrawal from a course or the University, these grades are assigned in the following manner:
 - (1) Students may withdraw from individual classes with a grade of "W" until 5 p.m. on the 35th day of regularly scheduled classes. After that date, withdrawals from

individual classes are not permitted except for medical or other non-academic emergencies.

- (a) A student who seeks to withdraw, for medical reasons, from the University or from a class after the 35th day of regularly scheduled classes must by noon of the last class day (finals weeks is not considered in last day calculation) have a letter sent to the Dean of Students the student's college by the student's personal physician, detailing the nature of the illness and recommending withdrawal for medical reasons. In extenuating circumstances not related to the academic performance, the dean may grant a withdrawal if a written request from the student is received by noon of the last class day. If the dean approves the request, the dean will send a copy of the request or letter to the Office of Registration the Registrar and all affected grades for that semester will be noted as "W" on the student's transcript. The dean and/or Registrar will notify the student's faculty members of any grade changes.
- A student who seeks to withdraw for medical reasons (b) **from an individual class** after the 35th day of regularly scheduled classes must by noon of the last class day have a letter sent to the dean of the student's College by the student's personal physician, detailing the nature of the illness and recommending withdrawal for medical reasons. In extenuating circumstances not related to the academic performance, the dean may grant a withdrawal if a written request from the student is received by noon of the last class day. If the dean approves the request, the dean will send a copy of the request or letter to the Office of the Registrar and the affected grades for that course will be noted as "W" on the student's transcript. The dean will notify the student's faculty member(s) of any grade changes.

Students withdrawing from the University should go to the dean's office of their respective major the Office of the Registrar to initiate the University withdrawal process. Undeclared students and special undergraduate students should report to the Dean of Cook-Cole College of Arts and Sciences.

(2) For classes held in non-traditional time frames, such as summer school or for offcampus offerings, students may withdraw with no penalty during the first half of the course, but may not withdraw during the second half of the course except for medical or other non-academic emergencies.

i. The grade of "AU" indicates that the student is auditing the course. Auditing a course means that a student enrolls in a course, if class size permits and with department approval, but does not receive academic credit.

For graduate students, the grade of "AU" is also assigned automatically for GRAD 698-Continuous Enrollment.

j. The grade of "CR" is assigned for credit awarded to students who have met the PHED 101 requirement through military service.

(Moved paragraph 3. to the beginning as it applied to both undergraduate and graduate grading.)

- 2. During the regular session, grade estimates are available to all first-year students, ROTC Cadets, upperclass students making a "D" or "F", and students who are not making satisfactory academic progress (all students with a cumulative GPA less than 2.0). Estimate grades are due to the Office of the Registrar by noon on Monday of the seventh week of regularly scheduled classes and are available to students and advisors in myLongwood as soon as they are posted. Estimates are not recorded as part of the student's permanent academic record. They are, however, an important indicator of academic risk to students. This early warning should give the student time to improve academic performance where needed.
- 3. Students are allowed five course repeats for which the original grade is excluded and the most recent grade earned, even if it is lower, will be included in GPA calculation. This means you can retake the same course five times, or retake five different courses, or any other combination. Starting with the sixth repeat, both the original and the new grade will be included in grade point average calculations, but only the second enrollment will count in earned hours.

Only course work taken at Longwood University can be used in the repeat grade calculation. Transfer credits do not replace an earned grade. The repeat policy does not apply to courses which have an alternate repeat policy stated in the course description. Retaking a class can extend the time it takes for the student to graduate. Students do not earn additional cumulative credit (and may lose cumulative credit) when they retake a course, which can affect athletic eligibility.

All enrollments and grades appear on the transcripts regardless of repeat status. Grades for repeated courses after the fifth repeat are designated on the transcript with an 'A(verage)' in the repeat column of the transcript, to signify the grade is calculated in the grade point average. Prior to Fall 2011 repeated courses were designated by an "R" e.g., RA, RB, RC, RD and RF.

(Moved paragraph 6. to the beginning as it applied to both undergraduate and graduate grading.)

Graduate Grading Policy

- Beginning with the Fall 2014 semester, plus and minus signs on grades will affect the grade point average calculation. The following point values will be used: A = 4.0, A- = 3.7, B+ = 3.3, B = 3.0, B- = 2.7, C+ = 2.3, C = 2.0, C- = 1.7, F = 0. For courses taken prior to the Fall 2014 semester, plus and minus signs on grades were not used in computing the GPA. A minimum grade point average of 3.00 on a 4-point scale is required to remain in the graduate program and for graduation.
 - a. The grade of "A" indicates excellence and mastery of the subject matter.
 - b. The grade of "B" indicates good understanding of the subject matter.
 - c. The grade of "C" indicates passing knowledge of the subject matter.
 - d. The grade of "F" indicates failure to master the subject matter through the objectives of the course.
 - e. The grade of "I" indicates that because of illness or for other good reason, the work of the semester has not been completed. An "T" becomes an "F" unless the work is completed and the instructor assigns a course grade by the last day of classes of the subsequent regular semester as published in the University calendar (i.e., an incomplete awarded in the fall semester must be removed by the last day of classes in the spring, and an incomplete awarded in the spring or summer semesters must be removed by the last day of classes in the spring, and an incomplete awarded in the fall). The awarding of a grade of "I" requires an understanding between the instructor and student as to when and how the course will be completed. An extension of the time limit is possible, but must be approved, prior to the expiration date stated above, by the instructor and the Dean of the College of Graduate & Professional Studies. A graduate student with six or more hours of incompletes will not be allowed to enroll in any additional graduate courses.
 - f. The grades of "P", "SP", and "NP" indicate the following: the Pass/Satisfactory Progress/Not Pass grading option will be used in all thesis research, collaborative special education research, professional portfolio, and comprehensive examination courses and will not be used in calculating the grade point average. The P/SP/NP grading option may be used in all practicum, internships, externships, and field/clinical experiences if so designated by the program and will not be used in calculating the grade point average. Each course will have a minimum number of hours with a "P" grade required and only those hours with a grade of "P" will meet requirements for completion. The P/SP/NP grades do not affect the GPA.
 - g. The grade of "W" indicates withdrawal without academic penalty. It is automatically assigned for withdrawal from full term fall and spring classes from the end of the drop period (first six class days) until 5:00 p.m. on the thirty-fifth (35th) day and for withdrawals from summer and other non-full term courses from the end of the drop period to the mid-point of the course. Like all grades, "W" grades are recorded on the student's transcript. Upon withdrawal from a course or the University, these grades are assigned in the following manner:
 - (1) A student who seeks to withdraw, for medical reasons, from an individual class or from the University after the 35th day of regularly

scheduled classes must by noon of the last class day (finals week is not considered in last day calculation) send a letter to the Dean of the College of Graduate & Professional Studies accompanied by a letter from a physician, detailing the nature of the illness, and recommending withdrawal for medical reasons. In other extenuating circumstances not related to academic performance, the Dean may grant a withdrawal if a written letter from the student is received by noon of the last class day. If the Dean approves the request, the Dean will send a copy of the letter to the Office of the Registrar and the affected grade(s) for that semester will be noted as "W" on the student's transcript. The Dean will notify the student's faculty members of any grade changes.

- h. The grade of "AU" indicates participation on a noncredit basis by students who meet certain minimum standards set by the course instructor. Students wishing to audit must have permission from the chair of the department in which the course is offered, do not receive academic credit, and are subject to the same tuition and fees as students enrolled for credit.
- i. The grade of "NG" is automatically assigned for the course GRAD 698 Continuous Enrollment. Students receive 0 quality points and no credit hours.
- 2. If a student repeats a graduate course, the most recently earned grade will be averaged into the student's grade point average along with the original grade. The second grade in the course **does not replace** the original grade. All enrollments and grades appear on the transcripts.

References: Minutes of the Organization of Teaching Faculty, March 6, 1986; March 5, 1907; January 15, 1987; April 30, 1987; February 16, 1989; October 12, 1989; November 16, 1989; College Council, April 23, 1992, Faculty Senate, October 1995; November 14, 2104; April 9, 2015; Board of Visitors, June 15, 2001; Board of Visitors, June 10, 2010.